UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA MIAMI DIVISION

LAW OFFICES OF TIMOTHY CARL BLAKE, P.A., individually, and on behalf of all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,

VS.	Class Action
JCM DISTRIBUTORS, LLC, doing business as JCM COPIERS,	
Defendant.	

COMPLAINT and JURY DEMAND

This is a class action alleging that the Defendant, JCM Distributors, LLC, a Florida limited liability company doing business as JCM Copiers, violated the Telephone Consumer Protection Act and implementing regulations by sending unsolicited facsimile advertisements to persons and entities that do not contain the legally required opt-out language. Plaintiff, Law Offices of Timothy Carl Blake, P.A., on behalf of a class of persons similarly situated, seeks statutory damages for each violation.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. The Telephone Consumer Protection Act, as amended by the Junk Facsimile Prevention Act of 2005, 47 U.S.C. § 227 ("TCPA"), is a consumer protection statute that confers on plaintiffs the right to be free from certain harassing and privacy-invading conduct and authorizes an award of damages whenever a violation occurs. The TCPA provides a private right of action and statutory damages for each violation. Congress

and the Federal Commutations Commission ("FCC") have found that the sending of noncompliant unsolicited fax advertisements causes the common harm of shifting advertising costs to the consumer.

2. Plaintiff, Law Offices of Timothy Carl Blake, P.A., individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, brings this action against the Defendant for violations of the TCPA arising from the sending of unsolicited facsimile advertisements to the telephone facsimile machine of the Plaintiff and to the telephone facsimile machines of other persons or entities that do not contain the requisite opt-out notice. The unsolicited facsimile advertisement sent to Plaintiff is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 ("Facsimile Advertisement").

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

- 3. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.
- 4. Venue is appropriate in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, as the offending Facsimile Advertisement was sent by or on behalf of Defendant to Plaintiff's facsimile machine in Miami-Dade County, Florida.

PARTIES

- Plaintiff has its principal place of business in Miami-Dade County, Florida,
 at 66 West Flagler Street, Suite 1201, Miami, FL 33130.
- 6. Defendant is a for-profit Florida limited liability corporation. Defendant's principal place of business is located in Miami-Dade County.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

- 7. Defendant buys and sells copy machines and related services.
- 8. On or about September 19, 2017, Defendant caused the Facsimile Advertisement promoting Defendant's products and services to be transmitted to Plaintiff's telephone facsimile machine at (305) 373-4323.
- 9. The Facsimile Advertisement describes particular SHARP brand copiers that Defendant sells and indicates that it will provide them at highly discounted prices.
- 10. Defendant's Facsimile Advertisement failed to contain an opt-out notice stating that the recipient may make a request to the sender not to send any future faxes and that failure to comply with the request within 30 days is unlawful.
- 11. Upon information and belief, Defendant sent similar unsolicited facsimile advertisements without compliant opt-out notices to the telephone facsimile machines of other persons and entities.
- 12. A compliant opt-out notice is required to be included on all unsolicited facsimile advertisements by the TCPA and its implementing regulations, 47 C.F.R. 64.1200(a)(4).
- 13. By sending the Facsimile Advertisement, Defendant harmed Plaintiff and the Plaintiff Class by shifting the cost of adverting to the consumer in violation of the TCPA.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

14. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action, pursuant to Rule 23(a) and 23(b)(3), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, for statutory damages on behalf of it and a class of all persons similarly situated.

- 15. Plaintiff brings this class action pursuant to the TCPA, and is a member of and seeks to represent a class of persons ("Plaintiff Class") defined as:
 - "All persons and entities who were sent one or more unsolicited facsimiles to a telephone facsimile machine after October 6, 2013, advertising Defendant's products and/or services, where the advertisement failed to contain an opt-out notice required by 47 C.F.R. 64.1200(a)(4)."
- 16. <u>Class Size (Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(1))</u>: Plaintiff, upon information and belief, avers that the proposed class is in excess of 50 persons. The class size is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable and uneconomical.
- 17. <u>Commonality (Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(2))</u>: There are questions of law and fact common to all members of the Plaintiff Class. Common material questions of fact and law include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. whether the Defendant (or another on its behalf) transmitted an unsolicited facsimile advertisement promoting its goods and services to the telephone facsimile machines of Plaintiff and other members of the Plaintiff Class;
 - b. whether Defendant's Facsimile Advertisements contained a TCPA compliant opt-out notice;
 - c. whether Defendant's Facsimile Advertisements failed to state that the sender's failure to comply, within 30 days, with a request not to send future advertisements to the recipient's telephone facsimile machine or machines is unlawful;
 - d. whether Defendant's Facsimile Advertisements violated the provisions of 47
 C.F.R. § 64.1200(a)(4);
 - e. whether Plaintiff and the other members of the Plaintiff Class are entitled to statutory damages; and

- f. whether Plaintiff and the other members of the Plaintiff Class are entitled to treble damages.
- 18. <u>Typicality (Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(3))</u>: The claims of the named Plaintiff are typical of the claims of all members of the Plaintiff Class. Defendant sent Facsimile Advertisements promoting its products and services to Plaintiff and the Plaintiff Class that failed to contain requisite opt-out language. Plaintiff raises questions of fact and law common to Plaintiff and the Plaintiff Class. Plaintiff and the Plaintiff Class share the common injury of having Defendant's advertising costs improperly shifted to them and such injury arises from common conduct. The Defendant has acted the same or in a similar manner with respect to the named Plaintiff and all members of the Plaintiff Class.
- 19. Fair and Adequate Representation (Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(4)): The named Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the Plaintiff Class. Plaintiff is committed to this cause, will litigate it vigorously, and is aware of the fiduciary duties of a class representative. Plaintiff's interests are consistent with and not antagonistic to the interests of the Plaintiff Class. Plaintiff has a strong personal interest in the outcome of this action and has retained experienced class counsel to represent it and the Plaintiff Class.
- 20. Class Counsel is experienced in class action litigation and has successfully litigated class claims.
- 21. <u>Predominance and Superiority (Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3))</u>: A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and equitable adjudication of the controversy between the parties. Common questions of law and fact predominate over any

questions affecting only individual members, and a class action is superior to other methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy because:

- a. proof of Plaintiff's claims will also prove the claims of the Plaintiff Class without the need for separate or individualized proceedings;
- evidence regarding defenses or any exceptions to liability that the Defendant may assert and prove will come from the Defendant's records and will not require individualized or separate inquiries or proceedings;
- c. the Defendant has acted and is continuing to act pursuant to common policies or practices by transmitting unsolicited facsimile advertisements promoting its products and service to the telephone facsimile machines of all members of the Plaintiff Class that fail to contain the opt-out notice required by 47 C.F.R. § 64.1200(a)(4);
- g. the Defendant has acted and is continuing to act pursuant to common policies or practices by transmitting unsolicited facsimile advertisements promoting its products and/or services to the telephone facsimile machines of all members of the Plaintiff Class that do not contain an opt-out notice required by 47 C.F.R. § 64.1200(a)(4);
- d. the amount likely to be recovered by individual class members does not support individual litigation;
- e. a class action will permit a large number of relatively small claims involving virtually identical facts and legal issues to be resolved efficiently in one proceeding based upon common proofs; and
- f. this case is inherently manageable as a class action in that:

- i. the Defendant and/or its agents identified persons or entities to receive the facsimile advertisement transmissions and it is believed that the Defendant's computer and business records, or that of its agents, will enable the Plaintiff to readily identify class members and establish liability and damages;
- ii. liability and damages can be established for the Plaintiff and the PlaintiffClass with the same common proofs;
- iii. statutory damages are provided for in the statute and are the same for all Plaintiff Class members and can be calculated in the same or a similar manner;
- iv. a class action will result in an orderly and expeditious administration of claims and it will foster economics of time, effort and expense;
- v. a class action will contribute to uniformity of decisions concerning the Defendant's practices; and
- vi. as a practical matter, the claims of the members of the Plaintiff Class are likely to go unaddressed absent class certification.

Count 1 Claim for Relief for Violations of the TCPA

- 22. Plaintiff and the Plaintiff Class reassert and incorporate herein by reference the averments set forth in paragraphs 1 through 21 above.
- 23. This is an action by named Plaintiff and the Plaintiff Class against the Defendant, for violations of the TCPA.
- 24. Defendant violated the TCPA (47 C.F.R. § 64.1200(a)(4)), which applies to all unsolicited facsimiles advertisements, by causing the transmission of unsolicited

facsimile advertisements to Plaintiff and to the members of the Plaintiff Class that failed to contain the requisite opt-out notice.

- 25. The rules at 47 C.F.R. § 64.1200 (a)(4)(iii) specify that the opt-out notice contained in all unsolicited fax advertisements must: (1) be clear and conspicuous and on the first page of the ad; (2) state that the recipient may make a request to the sender not to send any future ads and that failure to comply, within 30 days, with a request is unlawful; and, (3) contain a domestic contact telephone number and fax number for the recipient to transmit an opt-out request.
- 26. The named Plaintiff and the members of the Plaintiff Class are entitled to \$1,500 in statutory damages against the Defendant for each unsolicited facsimile advertisement promoting its products and/or services that was knowingly and willfully sent to a telephone facsimile machine that did not contain a TCPA compliant opt-out notice.
- 27. In the alternative, the named Plaintiff and the members of the Plaintiff Class are entitled to \$500 in statutory damages against the Defendant for each unsolicited facsimile advertisement promoting its products and/or services that was negligently sent to a telephone facsimile machine that did not contain a TCPA compliant opt-out notice.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, demand judgment in its favor and against the Defendant and request an order:

A. certifying this action as a class action pursuant to Rule 23, appointing Plaintiff, Law Offices of Timothy Carl Blake, P.A., as the representative of the class, and appointing Plaintiff's undersigned counsel as counsel for the class;

- B. finding that the Defendant caused unsolicited facsimile advertisements to be sent to class members that failed to contain the opt-out notice required by the TCPA and its implementing regulations;
- C. finding that the Defendant is liable to pay statutory damages of \$1,500 for each unsolicited facsimile advertisement that was knowingly and willfully sent to a class member, that failed to contain the opt-out notice required by the TCPA and its implementing regulations;
- D. finding that, in the alternative, Defendant is liable to pay statutory damages of \$500 for each unsolicited facsimile advertisement that was negligently sent to a class member that failed to contain the opt-out notice required by the TCPA and its implementing regulations;
- E. entering a judgment in favor of the Class Representative for the total amount of statutory penalties plus pre-judgment interest and allowable costs;
- F. requiring Defendant to pay a court appointed trustee the full amount of the penalties, interest and costs to be distributed to the Plaintiff Class members after deducting costs and fees as determined by the Court;
- G. awarding equitable reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred in connection in this action and an incentive bonus to Plaintiff, to be deducted from the total amount of penalties, interest and costs before the pro-rata amounts are distributed by the trustee to the Plaintiff Class members; and
- H. granting supplemental equitable relief as may be appropriate.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff and the Plaintiff Class demand trial by jury on all issues that can be heard by a jury.

Respectfully submitted,

Shawn A. Heller, Esq. Florida Bar No. 46346 shawn@sjlawcollective.com Joshua A. Glickman, Esq. Florida Bar No. 43994 josh@sjlawcollective.com

Social Justice Law Collective, PL 434 Skinner Blvd., #206 Dunedin FL 34698 Tel: (305) 323-6433

Peter Bennett Florida Bar No. 68219 peterbennettlaw@gmail.com Richard Bennett Florida Bar No.150627 richardbennett27@gmail.com

Bennett & Bennett 1200 Anastasia Ave., Ofc 360 Coral Gables, Florida 33134 Tel: (305) 444-5925

By: <u>s/Richard Bennett</u> Richard Bennett







Dear: Customer

JCM COPIERS, LLC is a Sharp authorized CCR and would like to <u>BUY</u> your current office equipment, no matter what the brand. We would like to exchange your present machine for new Sharp equipment at a highly discounted price.

Your company could be eligible for this program even if you are currently in a lease agreement.

JCM is now offering free document usage studies in order to assess your present needs. We want to offer your workplace the latest technology - providing you with faster equipment, better quality and more reliability resulting in increased productivity. All of this at a truly affordable price.

Also, volor is no longer a luxury. Have you thought about the impact of adding volor to your documents?

The intent of this offer is to exchange your old office equipment for new equipment, while keeping your costs approximately the same (usually lower).

If you would like to take advantage of the exchange program, or at least learn more about it and the *Soliars* that have been allotted to your trade-in unit, please check the box, which states that you would like more information on the *Buyback/Exchange* promotion, and fax it back to me at (786) 732-4375 No cover sheet is needed.

Thank you for thinking Sharp,

Mayte Mattei BCS Account Manager

DOO 70	Count Manager		
If you re	ceived this fax by an error and would like t <u>Yes</u> I would like more information on the Buyback Exchange Program.	o remove	from our list, please call 786-7012841 No I will not take advantage of the Buyback Exchange Program.
	Contact Name:		Signature of Officer or Owner
 Date :			Title:
		Date:	
	Phone#:		·

JCM Copiers 12257 SW 129 CT MIAMI, FL 33186 P: 786-701-2841 - F: 786-732-4375

JS 44 (Rev. 1) Sase 1:17-cv-23676-PAS Document 1-2 Entered on Ensure that 10/06/2017 Page 1 of 1

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.) NOTICE: Attorneys MUST Indicate All Re-filed Cases Below.

the county of Residence of First I stated Paintiff Mirami-Dade, FL (b) County of Residence of First I stated Defendant (c) Alterracy (Firm Nume Address, and Indeption Number) (d) Alterracy (Firm Nume Address, and Indeption Number) (e) Alterracy (Firm Nume Address, and Indeption Number) (f) Address of San Superior (First Sasses) (g) Check County wifer Action Acode (First I stated Defendant 1200 Annustratia Avec, (of Sa0), Coral Gables, FL 33134, (a)65) 4445-525 (d) Check County Wifer Action Acode (First I stated Defendant 1200 Annustratia Avec, (of Sa0), Coral Gables, FL 33134, (a)65) 4445-525 (d) Check County Wifer Action Acode (First I stated Defendant 1200 Annustratia Avec, (of Sa0), Coral Gables, FL 33134, (a)65) 4445-525 (d) Check County Wifer Action Acode (First I stated Defendant 1200 Annustratia Avec, (of Sa0), Coral Gables, FL 33134, (a)65) 4445-525 (d) Check County Wifer Action Acode (First I stated Defendant 1200 Annustratia Avec, (of Sa0), Coral Gables, FL 33134, (a)65) 4445-525 (d) Check County Wifer Action Acode (First I stated Defendant 1200 Annustration	or minimum the errin doester since	ti (BEB IIIBTITO CITOTIB OII	TENT THOS OF THIS TOTAL	ro riegi nega niegi		
Continue	I. (a) PLAINTIFFS Timothy Blake, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated			JCM DISTRIBUTORS, LLC, doing business as		
II. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place on "X" in One Box Only) 1 U.S. Government 2	(c) Attorneys (Firm Name, Ac Richard Bennett, Peter E	CEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CAS ddress, and Telephone Number) Bennett, Shawn Heller	Joshua Glickman	NOTE: Attorneys (If Known)	(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES OF IN LAND CONDEMNATION C.	ASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
U. U.S. Government Plaintiff C. U.S. Government Note a Party) Citizen of This State T.	(d) Check County Where Action	n Arose: 🌠 MIAMI- DADE	☐ MONROE ☐ BROWARD ☐] PALM BEACH ☐ MARTIN ☐ ST. LU	ICIE 🔲 INDIAN RIVER 🔲 OKEECHO	OBEE HIGHLANDS
1 1.5 (Government Palamirity 1.5 (U.S. Government) Note 7 Burry Citizen of This State 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	II. BASIS OF JURISDIC	CTION (Place an "X" in	One Box Only)		RINCIPAL PARTIES	
Defendant Critice on Subject of a 3 3 3 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6	_	_	*	PT	1	PTF DEF ncipal Place ☐ 4 ☐ 4
In the state of			•	Citizen of Another State		
Total Dispurance Dispuran				• —	3	□ 6 □ 6
10 Insurance 10 I		. '	* /	FORFEITURE/PENALTY	RANKRIIPTCV	OTHER STATUTES
V. ORIGIN Original Proceeding Proceeding Removed from State Court Reopened Reopened State Court State Cou	□ 110 Insurance □ 120 Marine □ 130 Miller Act □ 140 Negotiable Instrument □ 150 Recovery of Overpayment & Enforcement of Judgment □ 151 Medicare Act □ 152 Recovery of Defaulted Student Loans (Excl. Veterans) □ 153 Recovery of Overpayment of Veteran's Benefits □ 160 Stockholders' Suits □ 190 Other Contract □ 195 Contract Product Liability □ 196 Franchise REAL PROPERTY □ 210 Land Condemnation □ 220 Foreclosure □ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment □ 240 Torts to Land □ 245 Tort Product Liability	PERSONAL INJURY □ 310 Airplane □ 315 Airplane Product Liability □ 320 Assault, Libel & Slander □ 330 Federal Employers' Liability □ 340 Marine □ 345 Marine Product Liability □ 350 Motor Vehicle □ 355 Motor Vehicle □ Product Liability □ 360 Other Personal Injury □ 362 Personal Injury Med. Malpractice CIVIL RIGHTS □ 440 Other Civil Rights □ 441 Voting □ 442 Employment □ 443 Housing/ Accommodations □ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - Employment □ 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - Other	PERSONAL INJURY 365 Personal Injury - Product Liability 367 Health Care/ Pharmaceutical Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability 368 Asbestos Personal Injury Product Liability 370 Other Fraud 371 Truth in Lending 380 Other Personal Property Damage 385 Property Damage 385 Property Damage 385 Property Damage 385 Property Damage 510 Motions to Vacate 510 Motions to Vacate 530 General 535 Death Penalty 540 Mandamus & Other 550 Civil Rights 555 Prison Condition 560 Civil Detainee Conditions of	□ 625 Drug Related Seizure of Property 21 USC 881 □ 690 Other LABOR □ 710 Fair Labor Standards Act □ 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations □ 740 Railway Labor Act □ 751 Family and Medical Leave Act □ 790 Other Labor Litigation □ 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. Security Act IMMIGRATION □ 462 Naturalization Application □ 465 Other Immigration	□ 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 □ 423 Withdrawal 28 USC 157 PROPERTY RIGHTS □ 820 Copyrights □ 830 Patent □ 840 Trademark SOCIAL SECURITY □ 861 HIA (1395ff) □ 862 Black Lung (923) □ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) □ 864 SSID Title XVI □ 865 RSI (405(g)) FEDERAL TAX SUITS □ 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff or Defendant) □ 871 IRS—Third Party 26 □ USC 7609	□ 375 False Claims Act □ 400 State Reapportionment □ 410 Antitrust □ 430 Banks and Banking □ 450 Commerce □ 460 Deportation □ 470 Racketeer Influenced and □ Corrupt Organizations □ 480 Consumer Credit □ 490 Cable/Sat TV □ 850 Securities/Commodities/ □ Exchange □ 890 Other Statutory Actions □ 891 Agricultural Acts □ 895 Freedom of Information □ Act □ 896 Arbitration □ 899 Administrative Procedure □ Act/Review or Appeal of □ Agency Decision □ 950 Constitutionality of State Statutes
RE-FILED CASE(S) Sudden	V. ORIGIN Coriginal Proceeding Court Cou					
VII. CAUSE OF ACTION Class Action - Violations of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (47 U.S.C. 227) VIII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT: COMPLAINT: CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: JURY DEMAND: VIII. REQUESTED IN COMPLAINT: CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: JURY DEMAND: Vies □ No		(See instructions): JUDGE		,	DOCKET NUMBER	
VIII. REQUESTED IN ☐ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND \$ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint: COMPLAINT: UNDER F.R.C.P. 23 ABOVE INFORMATION IS TRUE & CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE	VIII. CALICE OF A CTION					
	COMPLAINT:	CHECK IF THIS UNDER F.R.C.P.	IS A CLASS ACTION 23	DEMAND \$	CHECK YES only i	*
10/06/2017	DATE	RUE & CORRECT TO T			Blell	

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEIPT # AMOUNT IFP JUDGE MAG JUDGE

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA MIAMI DIVISION

LAW OFFICES OF TIMOTHY CARL	
BLAKE, P.A., individually, and on behal	lf
of all others similarly situated,	

Plaintiff,

vs. Class Action

JCM DISTRIBUTORS, LLC, doing business as JCM COPIERS,

Defendant.

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

TO: JCM DISTRIBUTORS, LLC, doing business as JCM COPIERS c/o MARIA E. FERNANDEZ (Registered Agent)
12505 SW 125 CT
MIAMI, FL 33186

A lawsuit has been filed against you. Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff's attorney, whose name and address are:

Richard Bennett, Esq.
Bennett & Bennett
1200 Anastasia Avenue
Suite # 360
Coral Gables, Florida 33134-6340

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

	CLERK OF COOKT		
Date:			
	Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk		

CLERK OF COURT

ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this post: <u>JCM Copiers Reamed with Junk Fax Class Action Suit</u>